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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Good morning,

          3  this is Councilman Perkins.  Today we will, through

          4  this Governmental Operations Committee, conduct a

          5  hearing in which we will review what the Committee

          6  has done, but more importantly we will examine the

          7  jurisdiction of the Committee and look respectively

          8  at 2003.

          9                 Essentially what we are trying to do

         10  is talk with each other, have an organizational type

         11  of meeting to give us some perspective on what kind

         12  of work we're trying to accomplish, and what is on

         13  our agenda in terms of specific legislation, as well

         14  as specific types of hearings that we might want to

         15  make sure are included.

         16                 This is going to be a rapidly moving

         17  year by virtue of the fact of the elections that are

         18  coming up for City Council and I thought it would be

         19  helpful if we figured out now, rather than later,

         20  what it is we want to try to do when we know we're

         21  going to have this major interruption when it's time

         22  for Council members to petition and campaign for

         23  re-election and we want to make sure that we do the

         24  work of the public, even as we are attempting to get

         25  re-elected.
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          2                 So, the Committee on Governmental

          3  Operations has, since it's inception, been charged

          4  with a broad and important mandate, to oversee the

          5  governmental structure and insure the most economic

          6  and democratic functioning of this House.

          7                 As the Council considers the City's

          8  ominous financial condition, it will become

          9  increasingly more important for the Committee to

         10  carefully examine the areas where municipal

         11  government can be more effective and efficient, and

         12  where appropriate advance legislation to achieve

         13  these goals.

         14                 The Committee's subject matter

         15  includes several areas of which we have governmental

         16  oversight and where we are able to legislate.  They

         17  are as follows:

         18                 Analyzing and improving the

         19  responsiveness and accountability of City

         20  government;

         21                 Reviewing and promoting effectiveness

         22  among City agencies responsible for the handling of

         23  government information and the delivery of

         24  intragovernmental services Meta agencies (phonetic)

         25                 Enhancing the democratic process as
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          2  it functions in the City;

          3                 Assessing and bettering the

          4  operational and managerial efficiency of municipal

          5  government, including implementing organizational

          6  modifications throughout the government;

          7                 Reviewing the City's civil service,

          8  including studying managerial initiatives and

          9  compensation schedules;

         10                 Preserving the City's public

         11  information and records, including reviewing and

         12  collection of statistics and the standards for

         13  collecting such statistics;

         14                 Analyzing population and demography,

         15  generally including governmental efforts at

         16  redistricting and rezoning;

         17                 Overseeing and facilitating the

         18  relationship between the City and the State and

         19  Federal governments and any international entities;

         20                 Reviewing and implementing

         21  reorganizations in the legislative and executive

         22  branches of government; and

         23                 Reviewing tax policy consequences on

         24  the citizenry and accounting standards of

         25  governmental agencies.
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          2                 The agencies over which the Committee

          3  has oversight are as follows:

          4                 The Law Department;

          5                 The Board of Standards and Appeals;

          6                 The Department of Citywide

          7  Administrative Services;

          8                 The Department of Records and

          9  Information Services;

         10                 The Financial Information Services

         11  Agency;

         12                 The Commission on Public Information

         13  and Communication;

         14                 The New York City Board of Elections;

         15                 The New York City Campaign Finance

         16  Board;

         17                 The Voter's Assistance Commission;

         18                 The New York City Community Board;

         19  and

         20                 The New York City Tax Commission.

         21                 A major responsibility of the

         22  Committee on Governmental Operations is an ongoing

         23  review of governmental organizations with an eye

         24  toward increasing both efficiency and

         25  accountability.  In order to address the
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          2  organization challenges and managerial efficiencies

          3  of City agencies, the Committee should assert it's

          4  oversight responsibilities and implement legislative

          5  mandates for improvement where appropriate.

          6                 The City of New York has made several

          7  improvements in increasing access to public

          8  information.  Recently the Committee passed Proposed

          9  Introductory Bill #119- A, mandating that all

         10  government reports be available online shortly after

         11  completion. However, the City still has the need to

         12  make itself as available and accessible to the

         13  public as possible.  The Committee currently has

         14  very important pieces of legislation before it

         15  regarding the control and custody of City records,

         16  Proposed Introduction #102- A and Introduction 217,

         17  at the request of the Mayor.  The question of public

         18  accessibility to records is at the heart of good

         19  government, discussions of freedom of information

         20  and the openness of democratic process.  The

         21  Committee will soon be revisiting these important

         22  pieces of legislation.  Even a cursory review of New

         23  York City's electoral system illustrates the need

         24  for vigorous discussion and reveals the potential

         25  for considerable Committee participation.  The
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          2  Committee has held many oversight hearings and

          3  passed legislation dealing with the City's voting

          4  process, and intends to do more of the same in 2003.

          5    The year 2003 which is approaching Council

          6  elections provides a strong backdrop for oversight

          7  into the City's political process.

          8                 The past year has witnessed much

          9  fraudulent corporate activity and a good deal of

         10   "fuzzy math", relating to accounting standards.

         11  Much of this corporate corruption has taken place

         12  right in City Hall's back yard on Wall Street.

         13  Although the City may not have jurisdiction over

         14  many of these matters, the Committee does have

         15  jurisdiction to review and revise our own internal

         16  standards.  The City should not find itself

         17  utilizing antiquated accounting standards while such

         18  standards are being scrutinized and criticized so

         19  soundly around it.  The City should stand as a model

         20  for Wall Street and the rest of the nation in

         21  transparency and presentability of financial and

         22  statistical information.  The current fiscal crisis

         23  has demonstrated an overhaul of City tax policy,

         24  understanding the fact that has brought us to this

         25  point and the foreseeable consequences of such
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          2  changes in taxation, behooves the Committee to

          3  examine the matter.           The Committee may play

          4  a leading role in reviewing such changes in

          5  implementing any further amendments.  Finally, we

          6  will be hearing testimony of Resolution 661, a

          7  resolution calling upon the Council to oppose

          8  President Bush's renomination of Charles Pickering

          9  to the Federal Bench.

         10                 I want to thank my colleagues and my

         11  constituents for such a great year and to express

         12  how much I look forward to working with them both

         13  and to all the great things that we will do

         14  together.  Just so, give you some statistical

         15  information, I want to point out that in 2002, the

         16  Committee conducted eight oversight hearings which

         17  is an increase of 60% over the prior year before we,

         18  this new Council came into existence, and had sent

         19  to Committee 28 bills, an increase of 211% over the

         20  prior Administration, and 15 resolutions, an

         21  increase of 275% over the prior Administration. This

         22  is kept us busy and to see if New York is even

         23  greater for it.

         24                 Today we have with us Council Member,

         25  Peter Vallone, Jr., who is the Chairman of our
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          2  Public Safety Committee, and I want to thank him

          3  again the wonderful hearing we had yesterday.  An

          4  oversight hearing we had through his committee

          5  regarding the Central Park jogger case.  I believe

          6  we made some significant headway in understanding

          7  some practices and procedures and lessons to be

          8  learned from that particular highly, high profile

          9  case.  I want to thank him for the follow- up

         10  activities that he plans.  I also want to thank

         11  Council Member Michael Nelson who has 100%

         12  attendance, not only does he have 100% attendance,

         13  he has always been here first.  And he takes pride

         14  in that and, of course, I appreciate it.  He is, he

         15  gets the Member of the Year Award for attendance,

         16  and he's also the Chair of our Senior Centers

         17  Committee.  I want to thank our Christine Quinn, the

         18  Chair of our Health Committee, who is able, not only

         19  to talk over the phone and walk with a hot cup of

         20  tea, but also carry a fifteen pound bag of nails

         21  that she gets every day for review and I want to

         22  thank her for her good attendance as well.  Philip

         23  Reed, the Chairman of our Consumer Affairs

         24  Committee, will not be able to be with us today

         25  because of a funeral that he has to attend, our
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          2  condolences.  Eva Moskowitz was the Chair of our

          3  Education Committee, has just given birth to a 9 lb.

          4  Baby boy, and so she will not be able to be with us

          5  but we thank her for all the work that she's done

          6  with the Committee.  Joseph Addabbo, the Chairman of

          7  our Parks and Recreation Committee, who is doing a

          8  sterling job of following in the footsteps of his

          9  great grandfather, who was Congressman Joseph

         10  Addabbo.  Council Member Leroy Comrie, our Majority

         11  Whip is in conference at the moment with Speaker

         12  Peter Vallone.  I expect them to be up here, I mean,

         13  not Peter Vallone, I'm sorry with Gifford Miller.

         14  Flashback, I expect them to be up here shortly.

         15                 I also want to thank our Counsel to

         16  the Committee, Matthew Tollin, who has joined us in

         17  the last few months and has worked very diligently

         18  to make sure that we are well prepared and well

         19  informed.

         20                 And then, of course, we have been

         21  privileged to have join us a new Policy Analyst, who

         22  is actually not new to the Council, but new to this

         23  Committee, Jonathan Ettricks, and we appreciate the

         24  good work that he's been doing .

         25                 We have also as part of this
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          2  organizational meeting, members of our Finance

          3  Committee, Andrew Grossman and Company, who are here

          4  to assist us with any questions or concerns that we

          5  might have with regard to the mission and focus and

          6  work of our Committee.  So, (A) we want to talk

          7  about where the Committee is going; and then we want

          8  to discuss this resolution that has been put before

          9  us and is on it's way up from, it's here right now.

         10  It's a Proposed Resolution 661- A, sponsored by

         11  Council Member Barron, Clarke, Comrie, Davis, Lopez,

         12  Monseratte, Perkins, Reed, Rivera, Sanders,

         13  Seabrook, Serrano, Vann, Weprin and Yassky, calling

         14  upon the City Council to strongly oppose President

         15  Bush's renomination of Charles Pickering to the

         16  Appellate Court and commend the Congressional Black

         17  Caucus, Senator Charles Schumer and Senator Hillary

         18  Clinton for their opposition to such renomination.

         19                 We will get to that as part of the

         20  today's activity. So

         21                 MS. QUINN: Mr. Chair, could I ask

         22  that my name be added to the reso?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Without a

         24  doubt.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Anyone else

          3  that would wants to have their name added to this

          4  Resolution, please don't hesitate to tell our

          5  Counsel so that for the record you will be known to

          6  have done the right thing, at the right time.

          7                 This is an open discussion, I wanted

          8  to get some input from the members as to what, if

          9  anything, they had in mind.

         10                 Matthew, you might want to share with

         11  folks some of what is already out there on the

         12  agenda for us to deal with.

         13                 And our Finance people, if you have

         14  some comments or some observations that you want to

         15  share, just don't hesitate to say what's on your

         16  mind.

         17                 This is not a formal setting, so just

         18  jump in wherever you feel it's appropriate.  Okay?

         19                 Matthew, maybe you could start.

         20                 MR. TOLLIN:  Some of the upcoming

         21  hearings for the Committee; one will be an oversight

         22  hearing on the Help America Vote Act and that's at a

         23  date to be determined in February as of now and we

         24  will be having advocates, various groups that are

         25  affected by the Help America Vote Act, and we will
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          2  be having some governmental officials speaking on

          3  the ramifications of the Act and how the monies will

          4  be coming from the federal government, how they will

          5  be disbursed throughout the State and throughout the

          6  City. The Help America Vote Act is an act dealing

          7  with the modernization of voting procedures, voting

          8  systems and voting technology throughout the country

          9  and it also deals with making the voting technology

         10  ADA compliant for disabled voters in the various

         11  communities around America.

         12                 The Act was initially passed a

         13  mandate of 3.9 billion over several years and to

         14  initially go into effect in 2003, some of the

         15  provisions of the Act have already gone into effect

         16  requiring the updating of registration lists

         17  throughout the various states, throughout the

         18  country.

         19                 The money is a subject of slight

         20  contention right now in Congress, it was initially

         21  reduced to as low, from what I heard, $50 million

         22  for the initial year and apparently, it has upped

         23  again to $1.5 billion under some of the budget

         24  negotiations that are going on in Congress right

         25  now.  It represents a great opportunity to really
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          2  update and modernize the voting systems throughout

          3  the country, as well witnessed a breakdown in this,

          4  in the 2000 elections in Florida.

          5                 So it's, this legislation has been

          6  much ballyhooed (phonetic) and expected, it is

          7  highly anticipated and expected to be a very good

          8  legislation, assuming that the implementation of it

          9  is done properly and effectively.

         10                 CHAIRMAN PERKINS:  Let me say

         11  personally that this, for this Committee I believe a

         12  very, very important piece of legislation.  We are

         13  going to have, as pointed out, an oversight hearing

         14  because it's going to impact what happens in New

         15  York City quite directly, particularly our Board of

         16  Elections, particularly the new technology that

         17  we're going to be using in our elections. We're

         18  going to have to have weigh in on that because we

         19  want to make sure that the technology that is chosen

         20  is a technology that is user friendly with regard to

         21  our constituencies and considering the possibility

         22  that that technology may come online in time for

         23  your re-election.

         24                 I would hope that there's a full

         25  attendance at the meeting when that takes place, and
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          2  as pointed out we will try to have at that meeting

          3  some of the vendors and their equipment so that we

          4  can actually see, and touch and get some

          5  appreciation of the type of technology that's out

          6  there.

          7                 It was tentatively scheduled for 14th

          8  of February, but it seems if that's a weekend in

          9  which there's the Black, Puerto Rican, and Hispanic

         10  Caucus of the State legislature has their weekend,

         11  and so a lot of members, not necessarily from this

         12  Committee, but from the Council in general, heading

         13  in that direction.

         14                 I thought that it might be the kind

         15  of hearing that we wanted to make sure was at least

         16  available without as minimal, with minimal conflict

         17  to all the members.  It would almost seem kind of,

         18  while we know a lot of folks are going to be heading

         19  up there, when we're having this hearing, and it

         20  wouldn't give them an opportunity.  I'm very anxious

         21  to have this hearing. There's a lot of controversy

         22  going on with regard to this bill and how it's even

         23  going to be implemented.  In New York State already,

         24  there's been some controversy.  You may had read

         25  that Steve Wilke, who is the President of the State
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          2  Executive Director of the Board of Elections has

          3  been spearheading the development of this

          4  legislation and there's some conflict that should be

          5  very frank about between, as to whom is ultimately

          6  going to administer and implement the legislation.

          7                 The Governor has one opinion in terms

          8  of who he thinks should do it.  Mr. Wilke has

          9  obviously has assumed he would do it.  Whoever

         10  ultimately winds up in charge, will also be involved

         11  in creating a task force and who's on that task

         12  force and what that task force understands.

         13  Particularly about New York City and the

         14  demographics and the various and the diversity

         15  becomes very important.

         16                 So this is something that I think is

         17  going to be a major, a major hearing and who knows

         18  maybe some legislative initiatives or budgetary

         19  initiatives will have to follow from that.  I don't

         20  know for sure. Any questions around this vote, this

         21  Help America Vote Act?  Any? Okay, next.  Anything

         22  else?

         23                 MR. TOLLIN:  We have various pieces

         24  of legislation in the Committee right now dealing

         25  with increasing the voice of community boards around
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          2  the City and there are several pieces of legislation

          3  that are currently being reviewed and there should

          4  possibly be a hearing on some of those pieces of

          5  legislation over the next couple of months.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Let me ask a

          7  question of the members.  Without any commitment or

          8  anything like that, I just want to get a sense of

          9  what your Board's are saying as a relation to their

         10  role in this process.  Are they, are they

         11  frustrated?  Are they, this comes up especially

         12  lately, I might add, because of the homeless

         13  situation in our City in which the Department of

         14  Homeless Services following it's mandates are using

         15  spaces in our communities and very often the

         16  timeliness is controversial for the community

         17  boards.  But it's not just because of that, but

         18  that's one area in which I've noticed there's been

         19  some concern about. Does anybody have any thoughts

         20  about this?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I haven't

         22  heard as much concern from the community boards in

         23  my area about things relating to like direct mayoral

         24  agencies, say like the Department of Homeless

         25  Services or HRA, but we've had a number of problems
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          2  recently in the Hell's Kitchen area with things like

          3  the Housing Development Corporation, which is part

          4  of HPD.

          5                 I'll give you the specific example.

          6  They're building a building there right on the edge

          7  -- they're funding the building of a building right

          8  at the edge of a special district, this Clinton

          9  special district, and we have serious concerns about

         10  the height and bulk of this building.  They have no

         11  requirement to notify the Board or the Council

         12  members that they're giving this developer many,

         13  many millions of dollars.  And if we had known

         14  earlier we might have been able to dialogue with the

         15  developer, etc.  So I am hearing a lot of things,

         16  MTA, HDC, things like that. HDC, I think we might

         17  have some ability to do, cause it is in some ways

         18  part of HPD and it is chaired by the Commissioner of

         19  HPD.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Council Member

         21  Comrie has joined us.

         22                 Is there something you want to say?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes, Mr.

         24  Chair.  I signed onto this bill because the

         25  community boards in my area are consistently
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          2  bombarded with siting and re-siting by City

          3  agencies, not just agency facilities and homeless

          4  shelters, but the realignment of facilities and

          5  taking away facilities from the community boards

          6  without them having an opportunity to do any

          7  oversight or information.

          8                 So it's been a real problem,

          9  especially in my Community Boards 12 and 13, that I

         10  represent.  So I was a co-sponsor, prime sponsor

         11  with Council Member Brewer all three of these pieces

         12  of Intro 3, 4 and 5 regarding, given the community

         13  boards a direct opportunity to have some input and

         14  advice and consultation in these three

         15  introductions.  They severely impact the livelihood

         16  and the quality of life in the various communities

         17  of our City.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Well, I really

         19  would like to see us to try to wrestle with this.  I

         20  think that if we decide to go forward with something

         21  like this it would be a great opportunity to really

         22  mobilize the community boards to come into the

         23  Council and to represent themselves.  We don't, they

         24  don't that many opportunities in a meaningful way to

         25  have a voice that might make difference in terms of
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          2  their roles and so we will look into that. Related

          3  to this issue may know is an Intro that was

          4  submitted by Council Member Davis.

          5                 MR. TOLLIN:  Introductory Bill 274

          6  deals with transitional housing being sited in

          7  neighborhoods.  Historically if an agency sites or

          8  builds some facilities they have to go through the

          9  ULURP process, the Uniform Land Review Process,

         10  which would inform the Council members and the

         11  Boards what's about to happen.  It gives them 60

         12  days notice.  However, currently, and I just want to

         13  make sure I have the Bill number right, currently if

         14  they contract out to private entities to do the same

         15  kind of work no notice is given so there has been

         16  concern that in the middle of the night transitional

         17  housing centers have been opened up in neighborhoods

         18  without them receiving any notice and then there is

         19  a fear an abundance of them may be dispropotionately

         20  being placed in certain neighborhoods.

         21                 So rather than have a uniform process

         22  where it can properly vented by the whole City

         23  community.  It apparently is being done with little

         24  notice and little regard for certain procedures.  So

         25  it had to come with great outcry in the various
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          2  communities about this kind of activity.

          3                 Since 2003 is going to be an election

          4  year, there undoubtedly will be a lot of oversights

          5  dealing with the electoral process.  One of them

          6  will be looking at the Motor Voter Act, the national

          7  Motor Voter Act, which was passed in 1994 and seeing

          8  how it's implementation has been going about, if

          9  it's been efficient and effective.  There have been

         10  some concerns that people have been registering at

         11  the, when they get their license at the motor,

         12  Department of Motor Vehicles, and that they are not

         13  registered when they then go to vote.  So there will

         14  be some oversight hearings conducted to make sure

         15  that it is happening, happening properly and people

         16  are being registered as envisioned by the Act.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you for

         18  the conversation about that.  One of the things that

         19  I've personally been trying to do is to give the

         20  Committee as much opportunity to participate in

         21  voter related matters.  We've had more hearings

         22  probably with regard to the Board of Elections than

         23  anytime in the past, that I know of, since I've been

         24  in the Council, and we've tried to have those

         25  hearings in a substantive way so that we can play a
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          2  role in the reforming of the Board of Elections.

          3  The Board of Elections needs to be reformed.

          4  Exactly where the reform takes place, we're going to

          5  have to see as we become more familiar with where

          6  it's at and what the options are.  But there is out

          7  there in the community and I would dare say in some

          8  respects, a non- partisan way an understanding that

          9  our Board of Elections can probably be in the

         10  forefront for the nation, if not for the State, in

         11  terms of how we perform, how it performs, and

         12  intersects with the so called democratic process.

         13                 I am hopeful that this Committee can

         14  play a significant role in that regard, recognizing

         15  of course the political waters that we would have to

         16  tread in order to be successful.  Because after all,

         17  the Board of Elections is a political animal and as

         18  well as a administrative operation and so it

         19  becomes, it's not the easiest thing to deal with

         20  from that respective.

         21                 But I think it's something that we

         22  have no choice but to deal and I think that frankly

         23  that they, themselves, appreciate the attention that

         24  they're getting from us.  I want to take a moment to

         25  jump the agenda for a second because we have a
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          2  resolution that we're going to pass and the sponsor

          3  of the resolution is here.

          4                 We have a quorum and I want to make

          5  sure that we get the vote done before the quorum

          6  leaves.  Because I know folks have indicated to me

          7  that they have other matters that they needed to

          8  attend to today.

          9                 So with that in mind I want to turn

         10  our attention to Resolution 6661- A and we will be

         11  having a hearing on this proposed resolution which

         12  calls on the City Council to oppose President Bush's

         13  re- nomination of Charles Pickering, a United States

         14  District Judge in Hattisburg, Mississippi for a

         15  position on the United States Appellate Court.

         16                 We do have witnesses, it seems, that

         17  would like to testify with regard to this and so

         18  before we call on our first witness, I'd like to

         19  have Council Member Barron, the lead sponsor of the

         20  resolution, say something.  Council Member Barron.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you

         22  very much, Chairman Perkins.  I want to thank you

         23  for supporting this resolution and having input and

         24  amendments to it that we certainly agree with 100%.

         25                 I just wanted to urge the Committee
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          2  to oppose, strongly oppose President Bush's

          3  renomination of Charles Pickering.  This is a man

          4  who is a judge in Mississippi, strong friend of

          5  Trent Lott, that's says a lot right there.  But in

          6  addition to that, he has been very, very soft on

          7  things, like cross burnings in Mississippi, refuses

          8  to really seriously prosecute those kinds of cases.

          9  He has a connection to CXS Railroad Company that has

         10  a connection to slavery.  So we just don't think

         11  that this is the kind of Appellate Judge that our

         12  country needs or this country needs, that we would

         13  strongly urge you to oppose President Bush's

         14  renomination of him. Most of the democrats have

         15  opposed his renomination.  We want to ask and

         16  continue to push Chuck Schumer, Senator Schumer,

         17  Senator Hillary Rodham Clinton to continue their

         18  non-support of his renomination and their opposition

         19  to that, to even get stronger with it.  So I would

         20  like to urge this Committee to pass Resolution

         21  661-A.  Thank you, again, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRMAN PERKINS:  Thank you.  Again,

         23  the resolution calls upon the City Council to

         24  strongly oppose President Bush's re nomination of

         25  Charles Pickering to the Appellate Court and commend
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          2  the Congressional Black Caucus, Senator Charles

          3  Schumer, Senator Hillary Clinton for their

          4  opposition to such re- nomination.  Our first

          5  witness is with us today, L. Joy Williams of the New

          6  York State Young Democrats Caucus of Color, please

          7  come forward and be prepared to be sworn in.

          8                 MR. TOLLIN:  Please raise your right

          9  hand.  Do you solemnly swear or affirm your

         10  testimony you are about to give as the truth, the

         11  whole truth and nothing but the truth?  Thank you,

         12  could you please state your name, for the record,

         13  and the organization your represent?

         14                 MS. WILLIAMS:  My name is L. Joy

         15  Williams, I'm Vice Chair of the New York State Young

         16  Democrats Caucus of Color.  We at the New York State

         17  Young Democrats Caucus of Color would like to thank

         18  Council Member and Committee Chairman Bill Perkins

         19  for the opportunity submit our views on Resolution

         20  661- A.

         21                 We also applaud Council Member Barron

         22  for introducing the resolution as well as the other

         23  Council members who support it.  We support

         24  Resolution 661- A in opposing the nomination of

         25  Southern District of Mississippi Judge Charles
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          2  Pickering to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth

          3  Circuit Court.  Pickering's record as a district

          4  court judge and as a Mississippi State Legislator

          5  speaks to his hostility towards pertinent issues

          6  concerning communities of color and women.

          7                 The Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals

          8  consists of three of the most conservative sates in

          9  the country -- Mississippi, Texas and Louisiana.

         10  Charles Pickering's record of opposition to

         11  reproductive choice, women's rights, and civil

         12  rights is particularly troubling in the context of

         13  the circuit to which he has been nominated for a

         14  lifetime judgeship.  Judge Pickering's potential

         15  confirmation to the Fifth Circuit is critical due to

         16  the fact that it consists of the highest percentage

         17  of people of color in all thirteen circuits.  This

         18  accounts for 43% of the Fifth Circuit's population.

         19                 Charles Pickering has shown a marked

         20  hostility toward civil rights, including criticizing

         21  and seeking the limit remedies for violations of the

         22  Voting Rights Act of 1965.

         23                 In the 1970's, as a Mississippi State

         24  Senator, Pickering twice voted for a reapportionment

         25  plan that would increase the number of Senators per
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          2  district and thereby dilute the voting strength of

          3  underrepresented groups.

          4                 As a Mississippi State Senator in

          5  1975, Pickering co- sponsored a Senate resolution

          6  calling on Congress to repeal Section 5 of the

          7  Voting Rights Act, which requires federal pre

          8  clearance of changes to voting procedures by

          9  jurisdictions with a history of discriminatory

         10  voting practices.

         11                 In 1993, district court Judge

         12  Pickering published an opinion questioning the "one

         13  person- one vote" doctrine as "obtrusive".

         14                 Equally troubling is Judge

         15  Pickering's involvement with Mississippi's notorious

         16  Sovereignty Commission.  The Commission, a State-

         17  funded agency, was established after the Brown vs.

         18  Board of Education decision to oppose integration

         19  efforts and did so by paying informants to

         20  infiltrate civil rights and labor groups.  Judge

         21  Pickering has recently denied any contacts with the

         22  Commission, however a 1971 Sovereignty Commission

         23  memo indicates that Judge Pickering was "very

         24  interested" and "requested to be advised of

         25  developments" regarding the infiltration of a civil
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          2  rights organization.  The record further indicates

          3  that the Commission's investigator who received and

          4  documented Judge Pickering's request conducted

          5  follow- up activities of the very nature requested

          6  by Judge Pickering.

          7                 Pickering's confirmation would

          8  further jeopardize reproductive freedoms in

          9  Mississippi, Texas and Louisiana, which are governed

         10  by anti- choice legislatures and governors.  His

         11  record on these issues has proven his opposition on

         12  a women's right to choose and equal rights for

         13  woman.  Pickerin voted to call a constitutional

         14  convention to outlaw abortion, he voted against

         15  state funding for family planning programs, while

         16  chair of the Republican Party Platform Committee a

         17  denunciation of the U.S. Supreme Court's decision in

         18  Roe vs. Wade was introduced, and he also opposed the

         19  Equal Rights Amendment.

         20                 President Bush's nomination of

         21  Charles Pickering for the Fifth Circuit Court of

         22  Appeals and of extremist judicial candidates n

         23  general, could alter the current moderate balance of

         24  the courts and tip the scales of justice even

         25  further away from the protection of civil and voting
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          2  rights.  It is crucial that judges are sensitive to

          3  the rights and concerns of all citizens. Pickering's

          4  confirmation would move this already conservative

          5  circuit even further to the extreme right at the

          6  risk of the underrepresented groups in those states,

          7  thus further ostracizing them from the mainstream

          8  and the ideals of equal protection for all.

          9  Further, the conservative Fifth Circuit has reversed

         10  26 of Pickering's district court decisions, despite

         11  the Fifth Circuit's extremely conservative outlook,

         12  proving him to be too conservative for the

         13  conservatives.  It is central to the mission of the

         14  New York State Young Democrats Caucus of Color to

         15  protect the rights of people of color here in New

         16  York State.  However, we would be remiss if we stood

         17  by and allowed people of color anywhere to be

         18  subject to such a fierce adversary of civil, voting,

         19  and women's rights.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         21  much for your testimony.

         22                 And are there any questions from the

         23  members with regard to her testimony?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I would like

         25  to just commend you for the position and the well-
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          2  researched in detail.  Thank you for giving this

          3  Committee more information on the reasons why we

          4  should oppose this re-nomination.  I thought you

          5  expressed it in a very articulate way, in a very

          6  well- researched way and I think this invaluable

          7  information for this Committee.  Thank you once

          8  again.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Any other

         10  questions, comments?

         11                 Council Member Vallone.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Add my

         13  commendation. Apparently the Committee has reached

         14  out to many people, and you're the only who came.

         15  And that's a great thing, when young people get

         16  involved in government, it's good for the future.

         17  So thank you for coming down.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay, so we're

         19  ready for a vote.  I'm sorry Council Member Comrie.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I just wanted

         21  to echo the comments of my fellow colleagues.  To

         22  see young people with drive and vision there's a

         23  hope for all of us.  Younger people here on the

         24  Committee also.  Thank you for coming down, Ms.

         25  Williams.
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          2                 MS. WILLIAMS:  You're welcome.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  What borough

          4  are you from?

          5                 MS. WILLIAMS:  I'm from Brooklyn.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Brooklyn, okay,

          7  Charles now I know how she got here.  Council Member

          8  Nelson.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Good to hear

         10  you're from Brooklyn.  I just wanted to know if you

         11  speak some times for people of non- color, cause I

         12  like the way you speak.  Thank you.

         13                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes I do.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  So you like

         15  that ebonics, huh? Thank you very much.  We

         16  appreciate your presence again and keep up the good

         17  work.  We're ready.  Call the role.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Perkins.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I vote aye and

         20  also want to again make note that Councilwoman

         21  Christine Quinn has been added to the list of those

         22  who are sponsors of this resolution, though it's not

         23  indicated on the actual bill in front of us.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Nelson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  If I may be
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          2  excused to explain my vote.  I would hope people

          3  like this, would also be under scrutiny in all cases

          4  I would urge my Members to also look closer at the

          5  nominees like to Human Rights Commission, like Mohim

          6  Eddy (phonetic), an organization that he fronts for

          7  that also backs terrorists organizations, such as

          8  Hamas (phonetic), and it's reported murderous

          9  suicide acts.  Having said that I find Pickering,

         10  his past to be insensitive, very troubling and

         11  apparently has a seemingly odious past, his

         12  philosophies makes him unpalatable to me.  So I vote

         13  aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Quinn.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Addabbo.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  First,

         18  Chair, may I be excused to explain my vote?

         19                 I must express my concern for the

         20  fact that we had very little notice of the vote

         21  being today.  Usually I like some time to research

         22  an issue before a vote of importance such as this

         23  one.  But being that this has arisen, being that

         24  there is a hint of discrimination and even a hint of

         25  discrimination should not be tolerated, I will vote
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          2  yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Comrie.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Mr. Chairman,

          5  I'd like to be excused to explain my vote please.

          6                 I am voting aye on the vote. I am an

          7  original sponsor of the vote, of the resolution and

          8  I do believe that we have to as a body as an aware

          9  people try to bring out what we feel is wrong and

         10  express ourselves as a Council when we know and

         11  clearly this Mr. Pickering has record of hostility

         12  towards civil rights.  He has a record that has

         13  shown himself not to be a person who would be

         14  conscientious and deliberative when it comes to

         15  issues that would concern all people.

         16                 Our United States Senator Chuck

         17  Schumer waged a marvelous battle to keep him from

         18  being nominated last time and I would we also get a

         19  chance to articulate this in every venue and go down

         20  to Washington to help our Senator Schumer and

         21  Senator Clinton do whatever they can on a national

         22  level to let them know that New York is against

         23  Pickering. I vote aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Vallone.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Can I be
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          2  briefly excused, Mr. Chair?

          3                 I have to echo the comments of my

          4  colleague, Joseph Addabbo.  I only did find out

          5  about this yesterday and both Chairman Perkins and I

          6  were busy all day with the Central Park hearing.  I

          7  consider the vote of the City Council to be a

          8  powerful voice and I just don't know anything about

          9  this judge or this resolution.  It may have merit,

         10  it may not.  Hopefully by the time it comes before

         11  the City Council I will do my own research.  I would

         12  have loved to have some witnesses here on both sides

         13  to question.  But we don't, so hopefully by that

         14  time, I'll be prepared.  But at this point and

         15  deference to the Chair, I'm going to abstain.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of five in

         17  the affirmative, zero in the negative, and one

         18  abstention, the item is adopted.  Council members

         19  will you please sign the Committee Report.  Thank

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I want to thank

         22  the members for their support, and especially want

         23  to let everyone know that I appreciate that this has

         24  not had the normal of time that we provide for

         25  deliberation and consideration but it's the
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          2  timeliness of the matter that compelled us to try to

          3  take some action as soon as possible and, therefore,

          4  that's why we have it before us today.

          5                 But I appreciate especially those who

          6  are going to continue to consider the matter at hand

          7  and become even more informed than they are today

          8  and hopefully with that further investigation and

          9  additional information they will be able to

         10  appreciate why this position should be taken by the

         11  Council and join us in doing so as well.  But

         12  whatever position folks feel comfortable with, I'm

         13  sure that it will be something based on their

         14  conscience and based on what they think is in the

         15  best interest of this City and country. Thank you.

         16                 We can now resume some of our

         17  conversation.  Before you leave, Council Member

         18  Comrie, I just want to ask you a quick question,

         19  because I know you told me that you have other

         20  matters, pressing matters in your district.

         21                 But is there any, anything that you

         22  had wanted to suggest that the Committee look at, or

         23  not look at, or do, or not do, or whatever before

         24  you went out?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Considering
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          2  that we have 24 items, I think that we might have

          3  almost as much legislation as the Land Use

          4  Committee. I do feel that we really need to look at

          5  the Board of Elections, and we are looking at

          6  Campaign Finance on a regular basis.  You do have an

          7  Introduction by myself and also by Intro 34 and 42,

          8  where we're looking to deal with persons that are

          9  being appointed to New York City commissions and

         10  dealing with the Borough Presidents' notice and how

         11  they relate to the acquisition of real property and

         12  I would hope that we get those scheduled early

         13  within the calendar year.

         14                 I do appreciate this Committee. I

         15  think this is the most important Committee of the

         16  Council.  We have an opportunity to look at every

         17  governmental agency.  I think the Chairman is doing

         18  an excellent job and I would hope to be as fully

         19  supportive as I can be of the mission of this

         20  Committee to do oversight on even more levels than

         21  we're doing now.  As long as we don't meet all day

         22  on Fridays, I'll be happy.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  With that

         24  generous comment on the Chair, I'm obviously going

         25  to move to the top of our agenda some of those
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          2  considerations that you have brought before us.

          3  Including maybe no more Friday meetings.  Can I get

          4  a motion to that? Thank you.  Do we have a meeting

          5  next Friday?  Thank you very much Councilman.

          6  You're doing a wonderful job.

          7                 Councilwoman Quinn, you had

          8  something?  Anyone else who want to add before we

          9  finish?

         10                 Think about it, we're looking, there

         11  was suggestion that the Committee be like renamed in

         12  terms of something like Governmental Reform, I'm not

         13  quite sure if we want to necessarily go in that

         14  direction, but the idea was to try to get more

         15  involved in reforming, reform aspects of what this

         16  Committee offers us.  Think of stuff in that vein,

         17  if you think it has any merit, let us know.

         18                 We have somewhat of a broad kind of a

         19  mandate, that almost allows us look at anything.

         20  That's why almost everything has come into this

         21  Committee, it sometimes seems like it's not

         22  automatically obvious.  So if there are things that

         23  you think might be useful for this Committee to look

         24  at, even though it's not like clearly spelled out,

         25  let us know because it probably can fit in and it
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          2  probably can help us be of better service to the

          3  institution and to the City.

          4                 For instance, the Mayor, in his

          5  budget plan discussion the other day, talked about

          6  streamlining government and merges.  That may be

          7  something we should be looking it as a Governmental

          8  Operations Committee because basically he's taking

          9  the operations of the City and making some

         10  significant changes and we might want to have a

         11  hearing on just what that plan is and what does this

         12  imply with regard to all the other agencies, many of

         13  whom are represented on this Committee.  Which is

         14  one of the values of this Committee.  So, if we did

         15  have such a hearing for the most part everybody's

         16  interest would be represented.  So the hearing on

         17  how those committees that each of us has

         18  jurisdiction over, how that plan impacts those

         19  agencies that we have jurisdiction over.

         20                 Think of the Committee in that broad

         21  context because of the broadness of the membership

         22  and what governmental operations means in that way.

         23                 So, thank you very much for your

         24  continued support, and enjoy the rest of your

         25  weekend.
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          2                 Before we adjourn, Council Member

          3  Michael Nelson has one thing more he wants to add.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair.  I just want to clear something up

          6  because before I was in elected office I would hear

          7  an elected official say things like we just, we

          8  don't want to be here, we want, we don't want to be

          9  here late on Fridays or something; it's not because

         10  we plan to go to the ballgame or take in the

         11  theater, we do like to also get to our district

         12  offices occasionally when we get complaints from

         13  people:  "You're never there anyway."  So we try to

         14  be there as well to serve our people in our district

         15  offices.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Well, thank you

         17  for that insightful remark.  So you have an office

         18  near the beach?   Take care.  Thank you very much.

         19  This meeting is adjourned.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 11:25 a.m.)
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